

STATE OF NEVADA



DAWN GIBBONS
Chair

GEORGE ASSAD
Commissioner

R. DAVID GROOVER
Commissioner

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY
NEVADA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

MINUTES OF THE March 24, 2022 GENERAL SESSION

WEBEX LINK: <https://businessnv2.webex.com>

DIAL IN NUMBER: 1-844-621-3956

THURSDAY, MARCH 24, 2022 MEETING ACCESS CODE: 2485 946 9291

THURSDAY, MARCH 24, 2022 MEETING PASSWORD: QemXDapw445

Members of the public may attend the meeting via WebEx or telephone. During the agenda participants will listen for their designated item number to be called and follow the instructions given at the meeting to comment.

AGENDA

1. Call to Order

Chairman Dawn Gibbons called the meeting to order at 9:35 a.m.

2. Roll Call

Present: Chairman Dawn Gibbons, Commissioner George Assad, Commissioner David Groover, Deputy Commissioner Jennifer De Rose, Administrative Attorney Patricia Erickson, Applications Manager Liz Babcock, Financial Analyst Yvonne Shelton, Financial Analyst Paul Servello, Senior Deputy Attorney General David Newton, Deputy Attorney General Radhika Kunnel, Deputy Attorney General Mathew Feeley

3. Pledge of Allegiance

Commissioner Assad led a recital of the pledge.

4. WebEx Instructions

IT Professional Jeffrey Berry read directions for participation in the Webex meeting.

5. Public Comment

Angela Roper Barnett, newly established Nevada State Tow Association introduced the Association. Michael Baumbach, President, Nevada State Tow Association stated a request for an emergency tariff/fuel surcharge of 20% for increased fuel costs.

6. Approval of Agenda

Applications Manager Liz Babcock requested Items 45, 47, 69, 95, 102, 103 and 120 be removed from consideration that Item 87 should include "requires retroactive approval" and that Items 100 and 101 should include "PSS" Approved as modified 3-0

7. Approval of the Minutes of the February 17, 2022 Agenda Meeting

Approved 3-0

8. Briefings from the Commissioners

Commissioner Assad thanked staff for the preparation of the Agenda and mentioned several staff members by name. He questioned the Eddy's Towing order and stated the preference that all Agendas return to in person meetings. Commissioner Groover welcomed Enforcement Officers Justin Hoosier, David Joseph and Sean Kim. He also welcomed Compliance Audit Investigator, Christine Greten.

9. Briefing from the Deputy Commissioner

Deputy Commissioner De Rose thanked the administrative staff and the compliance staff in Las Vegas as well as the staff in the Reno office for their assistance while each office is down administrative staff members.

10. Report of Legal Counsel

Senior Deputy Attorney General Newton reported there have been no changes.

ADMINISTRATIVE CITATIONS AND IMPOUNDMENTS

*Items 11 through 63, with the exception of Items 45 and 47, were considered collectively.
Approved 3-0*

11. Citation 21162 issued to Frederick Harbor for violation of NRS 706.462 (DG)

12. Citations 21163, 22585 and 22586 issued to LVL, LLC d/b/a Stardust Transportation for violations of NAC 706.170, NAC 706.381 (2 counts), NRS 706.462, NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 391.51 and NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 382.301 (DG)

13. Citation 22607 and Impound I-3947 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to and Citation 22607 issued to Gilberto E. Gonzalez for violation of NRS 706.386 (DG)

14. Citation 22712 issued to Feroz Khan for a violation of NRS 706.386 (DG)

15. Impound I-4245 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Linda Hadding (DG)

16. Citations 21496 and 21497 and Impound I-4295 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to and Citations 21496 and 21497 issued to Farzad Salavati for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706A.280 (GA)

17. Citation 21946 issued to Mesafente Zemenuu Assefa for a violation of NAC 706.228 (GA)

18. Citation 22598 issued to Yellow Cab of Reno, Inc. d/b/a Star Taxi, Deluxe Taxi and Yellow Cab for violation of NAC 706.203 (4 counts) (GA)

19. Citation 22599 issued to Reno Cab Company, Inc. d/b/a Reno-Sparks Cab Company for violation of NAC 706.203 (4 counts) (GA)

20. **Citation 22600** issued to Executive Limousine Service, Inc. a Nevada Corporation for violation of NAC 706.203 (5 counts) (GA)
21. **Citations 22608 and 22609 and Impound I-3618** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to and Citations 22608 and 22609 issued to Vecellio Molina for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706A.280 (GA)
22. **Citation 22657** issued to Enrique Efstevan Davis for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 (GA)
23. **Citation 22663** issued to Planell Towing Corporation for violation of NAC 706.2473 ref 49 CFR 382.305 (GA)
24. **Citation 22664** issued to Jesus Cisneros-Escobar for a violation of NRS 706.386 (GA)
25. **Citations 22666 and 22667 and Impound I-3946** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to and Citations 22666 and 22667 issued to Wilfredo Cruz Oliva for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706A.280 (GA)
26. **Citation 22727 and Impound I-3827** the impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to and Citation 22727 issued to Domingo Lopez/Tahoe Taxi for violation of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 (GA)
27. **Citation 23109** issued to Yellow Cab for violations of NAC 706.3761.5 (197 counts) and NAC 706.360 (52 counts), **Citations 23111, 23112** issued to Reno Sparks Cab for violations of NAC 706.2473 re CFR 382.305(i)(3) (81 counts), NAC 706.2473 re CFR 382.305(d)(1), NAC 706.2473 re CFR 382.305(g) & (h)(1 count) and NRS 706.398; **Citations 23113 and 23114** issued to Yellow Cab of Reno for violations of NAC 706.2473 re CFR 382.305(i)(3) (26 counts); NAC 706.2473 re CFR 382.305(d)(1), NAC 706.2473 re CFR 382.305 (g) & (h) and NRS 706.398; **Citations 23115 and 23116** issued to Executive Limousine for violations of NAC 706.2473 re CFR 382.305(i)(3) (4 counts); NAC 706.2473 re CFR 382.305(d)(1), NAC 706.2473 re CFR 382.305 (g) & (h) and NRS 706.398 and **Citations 23146 and 23147** issued to Capitol Cab for violations of NAC 706.2473 re CFR 382.305(i)(3) (11 counts); NAC 706.2473 re CFR 382.305(d)(1); NAC 706.2473 re CFR 382.305 (g) & (h) and NRS 706.398. (GA)
28. **Citation 23224** issued to Daniel Akman II for a violation of NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 391.41 (GA)
29. **Citation 23225** issued to High Desert Towing for violation of NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 391.51 and NAC 706.405 (GA)
30. **Citation 23229** issued to Reno Cab Company, Inc for violation of NAC 706.3749 (GA)
31. **Citation 23230** issued to 1st Response Towing, Inc. d/b/a The Tow Truck Company for violation of NRS 706.4477 (GA)
32. **Citation 23251** issued to Dependable Tow Inc. for a violation of NAC 706.206(1) (GA)
33. **Citation 23257** issued to Top Gun Towing for violation of NRS 706.758 (GA)
34. **Impound I-3950** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Jesus Valenzuela (GA)

35. **Citation 21941** issued to Aly Doumbia for a violation of NAC 706.228 (RDG)
36. **Citation 21969 and 23402** issued to Alpine Auto Service, Inc. d/b/a Alpine Towing for a violation of NAC 706.203 (4 counts) (RDG)
37. **Citation 21975** issued to AWG Ambassador, LLC d/b/a Ambassador Limousine for violation of NAC 706.203(4) (RDG)
38. **Citation 22587** issued to Planell Towing Corporation for violation of NAC 706.203 (RDG)
39. **Citation 22589** issued to Bryant Towing, LLC for violation of NAC 706.203 (2 counts) (RDG)
40. **Citation 22590** issued to OLM Towing, LLC d/b/a Olmstead Towing for violation of NAC 706.203 (RDG)
41. **Citation 22591, 22595 and 23002** issued to Summerlin Movers, LLC d/b/a Summerlin Movers for violation of NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 391.23 (2 counts), NAC 706.311 (3 counts) and NRS 712.040 (RDG)
42. **Citation 22597** issued to XYZ Towing Inc. d/b/a Titan Towing for violation of NAC 706.4275 (RDG)
43. **Citation 22705** issued to Robert Tousley for violation of NAC 706.234.1(RDG)
44. **Citation 22852** issued to Adventure Photo Tour, Inc. for violation of NAC 706.218 and NRS 706.398 (RDG)
45. **Citations 22882, 22883 and 22885** issued to Power Wheels Towing, LLC for violation of NRS 706.398, NAC 706.360, NAC 706.191 and NAC 706.170 (RDG)
Item removed from Agenda prior to consideration.
46. **Citations 22919 and 22920 and Impound I-4282** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to and Citations 22919 and 22920 issued to Chaozheng Jiao for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706A.280 (RDG)
47. **Citation 22929** issued to Teferi Asfaw for a violation of NAC 706.228 (RDG)
Item removed from Agenda prior to consideration.
48. **Citation 23120 and 23121** issued to Lostra Brothers Towing for violation of NAC 706.3975, NAC 706.311 (13 counts) and NAC 706.420 (11 counts) (RDG)
49. **Citation 23124 and Impound I-4247** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to and Citation 23124 issued to Peter J. Sanchez Jr. for violation of NRS 706.386 (RDG)
50. **Citation 23252 and Impound I-3760** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to and Citation 23252 issued to Juventino Regino-Rosas for violation of NRS 706.386 (RDG)
51. **Citation 23403** issued to Mort's Auto Body, Inc. for violation of NAC 706.203 (2 counts) (RDG)
52. **Citation 23404** issued to James B. Tregellas and Linda L. Tregellas d/b/a A-1 Auto Repair and Tow Service for a violation of NAC 706.203 (2 counts) (RDG)

53. **Citation 23405** issued to Medlife Transportation, LLC d/b/a Medlife Transportation for violation of NAC 706.203 (RDG)
54. **Citation 23406** issued to Phenomenal Towing, LLC d/b/a Phenomenal Towing for a violation of NAC 706.203 (2 counts) (RDG)
55. **Citation 23407** issued to LifeTrans, Inc. for a violation of NAC 706.203 (13 counts) (RDG)
56. **Citation 23408** issued to Berger Transfer & Storage, Inc. for violation of NAC 706.203(RDG)
57. **Citation 23409** issued to Slater Transfer and Storage, Inc. for violation of NAC 706.203 (RDG)
58. **Citation 23410** issued to Coleman World Group, LLC d/b/a Coleman American Moving Services, Inc. for violation of NAC 706.203 (RDG)
59. **Citation 23411** issued to Vegas Strip Partybus, LLC d/b/a Vegas Strip Partybus for violation of NAC 706.203 (2 counts) (RDG)
60. **Citation 23412** issued to B & E Inc. d/b/a SNAP Towing for violation of NAC 706.203 (RDG)
61. **Citation 23413** issued to SW Excursion & Education Tours, Inc. d/b/a Sweetours for violation of NAC 706.203 (4 counts) (RDG)
62. **Impound I-3673** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Michael and Tabatha Armstrong/Sovereign Entities d/b/a Aquarius Towing (RDG)
63. **Impound I-3759** the impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Ana Maria Garcia-Esquivel (RDG)

**APPLICATIONS FOR CERTIFICATES OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND
NECESSITY TO PROVIDE TOW CAR SERVICE**

64. **Docket 21-05021** The Application of ~~Hargarett~~ *Hargrett* Enterprises, LLC d/b/a Out the Mud Towing for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide consent-only tow car service by tow car vehicle within the State of Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (RDG)
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the application and indicated staff support.
Approved 3-0
65. **Docket 21-11009** The Application of Recovery Towing, LLC for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide consent-only tow car service by tow car vehicle within the State of Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (DG)
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the application and indicated staff support.
Approved 3-0
66. **Docket 21-11024** The Application of Jofam, LLC d/b/a All In Towing for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide consent and non-consent tow car service by tow car vehicle within the State of Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (DG)
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the application and indicated staff support.
Approved 3-0

- 67. Docket 21-11027** The Application of Aloma Towing, LLC for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide consent-only tow car service by tow car vehicle within the State of Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (DG)
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the application and indicated staff support.
Approved 3-0
- 68. Docket 21-12035** The Application of Barrera's Towing Company, LLC for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide consent-only tow car service by tow car vehicle within the State of Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (RDG)
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the application and indicated staff support.
Approved 3-0

**APPLICATIONS FOR CERTIFICATES OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND
NECESSITY TO PROVIDE CHARTER BUS SERVICE**

- 69. Docket 20-03015** The Application of American Stage Lines, Inc. d/b/a American Stage Lines for final approval of a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide charter bus service within the State of Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (RDG)
Item removed from Agenda prior to consideration.
- 70. Docket 21-10034** The Application of Select Limousine Service, LLC d/b/a SLS for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide charter bus service within the State of Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (RDG)
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the application and indicated staff support.
Approved 3-0
- 71. Docket 21-11017** The Application of Sunshine Transportation, LLC d/b/a SunTrans for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide charter bus service within the State of Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (DG)
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the application and indicated staff support.
Approved 3-0
- 72. Docket 21-11029** The Application of Hart, LLC for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide charter bus service within the State of Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (RDG)
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the application and indicated staff support.
Approved 3-0
- 73. Docket 21-11035** The Application of Star Legend Limo, LLC d/b/a Star Transportation for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide charter bus service within the State of Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (GA)
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the application and indicated staff support. James Kent, Esq. appeared on behalf of the Applicant. Approved 3-0

REQUEST FOR TEMPORARY DISCONTINUANCE

74. **Docket 22-01018** The temporary discontinuance from January 26, 2022 through April 26, 2022 of service provided by Las Vegas Wedding Services, LLC under Permit MV 6141. Staff investigation concluded.
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated staff support. Approved 3-0
75. **Docket 22-02008** The temporary discontinuance from February 6, 2022 through June 6, 2022 of service provided by A Blue Sky Towing & Transportation, LLC under CPCN 7367. This required retroactive approval. Staff investigation concluded.
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated staff support. Approved 3-0

REQUEST TO EXTEND TEMPORARY DISCONTINUANCE

76. **Docket 19-07032** The request to extend temporary discontinuance from December 15, 2021 through June 15, 2022, of services provided by Red Carpet Transportation, LLC d/b/a ALS VIP under CPCN 2209. This required retroactive approval. Staff investigation concluded.
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the procedural history of the docket and indicated staff's request for an Order to Show Cause. James Kent, Esq. appeared on behalf of the carrier, indicating the owner sold the vehicle during the COVID shutdown and is now finding difficulty obtaining a new vehicle and asked the commissioners patience. Motion to deny request. Approved 2-1 Chairman Gibbons opposed Motion to rescind prior vote Approved 3-0 Motion to approve discontinuance to the July Agenda for final determination Approved 3-0
77. **Docket 20-02010** The request to extend temporary discontinuance from December 14, 2021 through May 14, 2022, of services provided by Power Wheels Towing, L.L.C. d/b/a Power Wheels Towing under CPCN 7396. This required retroactive approval. Staff investigation concluded.
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated staff did not support the request. Motion to deny request to extend Approved 2-1 Chairman Gibbons opposed
78. **Docket 20-03014** The request to extend temporary discontinuance from March 11, 2022 through September 11, 2022, of services provided by Las Vegas Transportation & Tours, LLC d/b/a LVTT under CPCN 2268. Staff investigation concluded.
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated staff did not support the request. Motion to deny request to extend Approved 3-0
79. **Docket 20-03026** The request to extend temporary discontinuance from March 12, 2022 through September 12, 2022, of services provided by Sunrise Plaza Transportation of Nevada, LLC d/b/a Lassen Tours under CPCN 2028, Sub 3. Staff investigation concluded.
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated staff support. Kimberly Maxson-Rushton, Esq. appeared on behalf of the Applicant. Approved 3-0
80. **Docket 20-04005** The request to extend temporary discontinuance from March 18, 2022 through September 18, 2022, of services provided by Eagle Transportation, LLC d/b/a Eagle Transportation under CPCN 2150, Sub 1. Staff investigation concluded.
Trailed to the afternoon session.

Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated staff did not support the request. Brent Carson, Esq. appeared on behalf of the carrier and stated the high cost of insurance was the delay and requested a 45 day extension to enable the carrier to obtain insurance coverage. Motion to extend the temporary discontinuance for 45 days Approved 3-0

- 81. Docket 20-05012** The request to extend temporary discontinuance from March 17, 2022 through September 17, 2022, of services provided by Annie Bananie Charters, Inc. under CPCN 2214. Staff investigation concluded.

Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated staff did not support the request. Motion to deny request to extend Approved 3-0

- 82. Docket 20-07007** The request to extend temporary discontinuance from February 9, 2022 through August 9, 2022, of special services provided by Integrity Taxi, LLC under CPCN 1121. Staff investigation concluded.

Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated staff support. Approved 3-0

- 83. Docket 20-07017** The request to extend temporary discontinuance from January 24, 2022 through July 24, 2022 of service provided by Double Decker Bus Company of Las Vegas, LLC d/b/a Double Decker Bus Co. under CPCN 2120. This required retroactive approval. Staff investigation concluded.

Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated staff did not support the request. Motion to deny request to extend Approved 3-0

///

///

///

- 84. Docket 20-08015** The request to extend temporary discontinuance from February 15, 2022 through August 15, 2022 of service provided by DCT Express, Inc. under Permit MV 6156. Staff investigation concluded.

Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated staff support. Approved 3-0

- 85. Docket 20-08020** The request to extend temporary discontinuance from February 20, 2022 through August 20, 2022 of service provided by Start Express Transportation, LLC under CPCN 2208. Staff investigation concluded.

Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated staff did not support the request. Motion to deny request to extend Approved 3-0

- 86. Docket 20-10044** The request to extend temporary discontinuance from January 31, 2021 through July 31, 2022, of services provided by C&J Development Enterprises d/b/a Custom Towing under CPCN 7061. Staff investigation concluded.

Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated staff did not support the request. Motion to deny request to extend Approved 3-0

87. Docket 21-07019 The request to extend temporary discontinuance from January 21, 2022 through July 21, 2022, of services provided by Fragela Towing, LLC under CPCN 7427. *This request requires retroactive approval.* Staff investigation concluded.
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated staff support. Approved 3-0

88. Docket 21-09003 The request to extend temporary discontinuance from March 1, 2022 through March 31, 2022, of services provided by New Charters Nevada, Inc. under CPCN 2110. Staff investigation concluded.
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated staff support. Approved 3-0

89. Docket 21-12020 The request to extend temporary discontinuance from February 13, 2022 through April 13, 2022, of services provided by Isnagas Brother, LLC d/b/a Isnagas Brother under CPCN 7459. Staff investigation concluded.
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request, stated that the carrier has gone back into business and indicated staff support. Item to be removed from the Agenda - Approved 3-0

///

///

///

///

MOTION TO EXTEND COMPLIANCE PERIOD

90. Docket 19-07021 The motion to extend the compliance period to September 30, 2022 for the application of City On The Side, LLC. Staff investigation concluded.
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the procedural history of the docket. Kristina Kleist, Esq. appeared and stated the agreement to staffs request for updated information during compliance. Approved 3-0

91. Docket 21-02011 The motion to extend the compliance period to April 25, 2022 for the application of E.A.C. Towing, LLC. Staff investigation concluded.
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated staff support. Approved 3-0

EXPIRED TEMPORARY DISCONTINUANCE

92. Docket 19-08004 The expired temporary discontinuance from January 25, 2021 through January 25, 2022, of services provided by Towing Near Me, LLC d/b/a Towing Near Me under CPCN 7386, Sub 1 and Staff's recommendation to issue an Order to Show Cause as to why the CPCN should not be revoked. Staff investigation concluded.

Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the procedural history of the docket and indicated staff's request for an Order to Show Cause. OSC approved 3-0

- 93. Docket 20-03023** The expired temporary discontinuance from February 9, 2021 through February 8, 2022, of services provided by In Cahoots Events, LLC d/b/a Lil Pink Party Bus under CPCN 2161 and Staff's recommendation to issue an Order to Show Cause as to why the CPCN should not be revoked. Staff investigation concluded.

Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the procedural history of the docket and indicated staff's request for an Order to Show Cause. Mike Ceragioli appeared and detailed the reasoning for his request for the temporary discontinuance. Motion to allow extension of temporary discontinuance for 6 months Approved 3-0

- 94. Docket 21-01021** The expired temporary discontinuance from January 22, 2021 through January 21, 2022, of services provided by Scott Towing & Transport, LLC under CPCN 7436 and Staff's recommendation to issue an Order to Show Cause as to why the CPCN should not be revoked. Staff investigation concluded.

Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the procedural history of the docket and indicated staff's request for an Order to Show Cause. OSC approved 3-0

VOLUNTARY CANCELLATIONS

- 95. Docket 22-01013** The voluntary cancellation of tow car services of Clark County Liens, LLC d/b/a Scorpion Towing CPCN 7469, Sub 1. Staff investigation concluded.

Item removed from Agenda prior to consideration.

- 96. Docket 22-01015** The voluntary cancellation of tow car services of PDQ Towing, LLC CPCN 7278. Staff investigation concluded.

Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated staff support. Approved 3-0

- 97. Docket 22-02016** The voluntary cancellation of tow car services of My Auto Service, LLC d/b/a My Auto Service CPCN 7295. Staff investigation concluded.

Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated staff support. Approved 3-0

- 98. Docket 22-02017** The voluntary cancellation of charter bus services of Del Sur Transportation, LLC CPCN 2267. Staff investigation concluded.

Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated staff support. Approved 3-0

- 99. Docket 22-02019** The voluntary cancellation of charter bus services of Greyhound Lines, Inc. CPCN 2479 Sub 2. Staff investigation concluded.

Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated the carrier owes \$300 on previous citations. Greg Ostendorf, Esq. appeared on behalf of the carrier. Commissioner Groover requested the item be tabled to the next subsequent agenda - Approved 3-0

NAME CHANGES

100. Docket 22-01006 The Petition of AWG Ambassador, LLC d/b/a AWG Ambassador and AWG ~~Carter~~ Charter Services for final approval to change their name by adding a fictitious name to do business as ~~Person~~ Personal Sedan Services and PSS for services provided under CPCN 2055 Sub 5. Staff investigation concluded.
Items 100 and 101 were considered collectively.
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated staff support. Approved 3-0

101. Docket 22-01007 The Petition of AWG Ambassador, LLC d/b/a AWG Ambassador and AWG ~~Carter~~ Charter Services for final approval to change their name by adding a fictitious name to do business as ~~Person~~ Personal Sedan Services and PSS for services provided under CPCN 1089 Sub 5. Staff investigation concluded.
Items 100 and 101 were considered collectively.
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated staff support. Approved 3-0

PETITION TO DEVIATE FROM REGULATION

102. Docket 21-12039 The Petition to deviate from Regulation NAC 706.3745 for services conducted by Yellow Cab of Reno, Inc. d/b/a Star Taxi, Deluxe Taxi, and Yellow Cab granted under CPCN 1014, Sub 2. Staff investigation concluded.
Item removed from Agenda prior to consideration.

103. Docket 21-12040 The Petition to deviate from Regulation NAC 706.3745 for services conducted by Reno Cab Company, Inc. d/b/a Reno-Sparks Cab Company granted under CPCN 1025, Sub 1. Staff investigation concluded.
Item removed from Agenda prior to consideration.

FINANCIAL RATES AND TARIFFS

104. Docket 22-01025 The Application of Aspen Moving Co., L.L.C. for approval of a tariff rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 3368. Staff investigation concluded.
Financial Analyst Paul Servello summarized the request and indicated staff support.
Approved 3-0

105. Docket 22-02006 The Application of Perlman Enterprises, LLC d/b/a Reno Tahoe Limousine for approval of a tariff rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 1101 Sub 2. Staff investigation concluded.
James Kent, Esq. appeared on behalf of the carrier and addressed the tariff changes referencing service animals, the general high rates, the minimums (2 hours), the fuel surcharge modification during winter months. Financial Analyst Paul Servello summarized the request and indicated the concerns staff has with the tariff as submitted. A discussion ensued. Motion to table request to the next subsequent Agenda. Approved 3-0

106. Docket 22-02028 The Application of ASP, Inc. d/b/a Aaction Movers of Nevada, Inc. for approval of a tariff rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 3239. Staff investigation concluded.
Financial Analyst Paul Servello summarized the request and indicated staff support. Approved 3-0

107. Public Comment
Commissioner Assad requested Items 122 and 123 be taken at the beginning of the afternoon session. Approved 3-0

1:15 PM AFTERNOON SESSION

108. WebEx Instructions

IT Professional Jeffrey Berry read directions for participation in the Webex meeting.

109. Public Comment

none

PETITIONS FOR RECONSIDERATION

110. Docket 21-09031 Petition for Reconsideration from Reno-Sparks Cab for reconsideration of fines on Citation 23210.

Items 110 and 112 were considered collectively.

Brian Hardy, Esq appeared on behalf of the carrier.

Commissioner Groover asked that the fine be revised to \$1,000 with \$800 in abeyance for each count. Approved 3-0

111. Docket 22-02010 Petition for Reconsideration from Michael Graham for reconsideration of denial of Driver Permit 12518.

Approved 3-0

112. Docket 22-02013 Petition for Reconsideration from Capitol Cab for reconsideration of failure to appear and imposition of fines on Citations 23142, 23143, 23144 and 23145.

Items 110 and 112 were considered collectively.

Brian Hardy, Esq appeared on behalf of the carrier and requested the hearing be reset.

Approved 3-0

APPLICATIONS FOR FULLY REGULATED CARRIERS

113. Docket 21-08017 The Application of BLVD Moving of Nevada, LLC for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to operate as a household goods mover within the State of Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (GA)

Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the application and indicated staff support.

Approved 3-0

114. Dockets 21-10008 through 21-10013 The joint Applications of Platinum LV Transportation, Series LLC for sale and transfer of 6 Series LLCs including: Celebrity Coaches CPCN 2105, Platinum LV Transportation CPCN 2166, Whittlesea Checker Taxi CPCN 2118, Bell Limo CPCN 1217, Airport Mini Bus CPCN 2350, Mammoth Limousine CPCN 1105, for a status check and Staff's request that an Order to Show Cause hearing be set on the matter. (DG)

Items 114, 115 were taken together

Administrative Attorney Patricia Erickson indicated Brent Carson, Esq. stated he is withdrawing as counsel and would like to table this item to the next subsequent agenda to allow the applicant to obtain other counsel. Applications Manager Liz Babcock indicated staff's request to schedule a separate Order to Show Cause hearing. Mark Friedman appeared on behalf of the Applicants and offered an explanation for the delay with vehicle registration. Motion to set the matter for an Order to Show Cause hearing – Approved 3-0

115. Dockets 19-08033, 20-04010, 20-04013, and 20-04014 The Applications of Platinum LV Transportation, Series LLC for temporary discontinuances of 4 Series LLCs including: Platinum LV Transportation CPCN 2166, Mammoth Limousine CPCN 1105, Airport Mini Bus CPCN 2350, and Bell Limo CPCN 1217, respectively, for a status check and Staff's request that an Order to Show Cause hearing be set on the matter.

Items 114, 115 were taken together

Administrative Attorney Patricia Erickson indicated Brent Carson, Esq. stated he is withdrawing as counsel and would like to table this item to the next subsequent agenda to allow the applicant to obtain other counsel. Applications Manager Liz Babcock indicated staff's request to schedule a separate Order to Show Cause hearing. Mark Friedman appeared on behalf of the Applicants and offered an explanation for the delay with vehicle registration. Motion to set the matter for an Order to Show Cause hearing – Approved 3-0

116. Docket 21-11028 The final approval of the Temporary Transfer of Operating Rights of LVL, LLC d/b/a Stardust Transportation granted under CPCN 2050, Sub 10, to LV All In Shuttle, LLC d/b/a All In Shuttle. Staff investigation concluded. (GA)

Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the application and indicated staff support. Approved 3-0

ORDERS TO SHOW CAUSE

117. Docket 22-01021 Order to Show Cause issued to Arrowhead Services, LLC as to why Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity 7352 should not be revoked.

Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the docket and indicated the owner contacted Jennifer Hill and stated that he would like to go back into business. Item to be tabled to the next subsequent Agenda meeting. Approved 3-0

118. Docket 22-01022 Order to Show Cause issued to Western Trails Charters & Tours, LLC d/b/a St. George Express, Salt Lake Express as to why Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity 1144 should not be revoked.

Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the procedural history of the docket and indicated staff's request that the docket be scheduled for a separate Order to Show Cause to occur after the expiration of the PLTI date of April 15, 2022. Motion to schedule an OSC Approved 3-0

119. Docket 22-02022 Order to Show Cause issued to Arkidian Towing Services, LLC as to why Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity 7351 should not be revoked.

Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the procedural history of the docket and indicated staff's request for revocation. Approved 3-0

120. Docket 22-02023 Order to Show Cause issued to Bekins A-1 Movers, Inc. d/b/a National Moving & Storage as to why Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity 3244 should not be revoked.

Item removed from Agenda prior to consideration.

APPLICATIONS TO DISMISS

121. Docket 18-12002 The Application of Red Rock Movers, LLC for a CPCN to provide household goods moving service within the State of Nevada. Deputy Commissioner's Motion to Dismiss Application. Tabled from December 9, 2021, general session. Staff investigation concluded.

Applications Manager Liz Babcock detailed the procedural history of the docket. Dismissal approved 3-0

DISCUSSION ITEMS

- 122. Docket 22-02029** Discussion regarding by whom and by what procedure are unclassified employees hired by the NTA and by whom and what procedure are NTA unclassified employees terminated from employment by the NTA. (GA)

Commissioner Assad detailed his concerns with the current procedures for hiring and terminating unclassified employees. He proposed that, at an open session of the Authority, interviews be held and appointments be made. In addition, the Commissioners will hold an open meeting to discuss possible termination of an unclassified position. Sr. Deputy Attorney General Newton stated he agreed there should be policies in place for the hiring and termination of unclassified employees and that the Director of Business and Industry may have policies in place that would impact those policies. A lengthy discussion ensued with regard to possible policies and procedures.

Motion made by Commissioner Assad to adopt the policy that:

“In an open session meeting of the NTA, the three Commissioners of the NTA or a quorum thereof shall conduct interviews of applicants seeking employment for an unclassified position with the NTA; the Commissioners, and only the Commissioners, shall thereafter deliberate in open session and select a candidate for that unclassified position by a majority vote. The Commissioners, by a majority vote, may include the Deputy Commissioner or the Application Manager to participate in the interview process only.

In accordance with NRS 241.031 and NRS 241.033, the three Commissioners of the NTA, or a quorum of the NTA Commissioners shall hold a meeting to consider the character, alleged misconduct, professional competence, or physical or mental health of an unclassified employee of the NTA. The Commissioners shall thereafter deliberate any further action that may be taken toward the employee by a majority vote of the Commissioners of the NTA.”

Approved 2-0 Chairman Gibbons abstaining

- 123. Docket 22-02030** Discussion regarding the NTA strategic plan 2022-2023 (GA).
Commissioner Assad detailed his concerns with the current strategic plan as submitted. A discussion ensued regarding certain aspects of the plan. It was generally agreed that the Chair shall continue to submit a draft of the strategic plan to the Commissioners and the Deputy Commissioner for any additional comments, suggestions and/or changes.

APPLICATIONS FOR DRIVER PERMITS

(Closed sessions may be held for items 124 through 128 to consider character, alleged misconduct, professional competence, and physical or mental health pursuant to NRS 241.030.)

- 124. Permit 12543** The Authority will determine whether to grant the application of Keith Carter for issuance of a driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462. Staff investigation concluded.
Closed session
Motion to continue to the next subsequent Agenda – Approved 3-0

- 125. Permit 12887** The Authority will determine whether to grant the application of Jeffrey Butler for issuance of a driver's permit pursuant to NRS 706.462. Staff investigation concluded.
Permit denied 3-0
- 126. Permit 12568** The Authority will determine whether to grant the application of Conrad Gallardo for issuance of a driver's permit pursuant to NRS 706.462. Staff investigation concluded.
Permit denied 3-0
- 127. Permit 2411** The Authority will determine whether to grant the application of Sam Mehadi for issuance of a driver's permit pursuant to NRS 706.462. Staff investigation concluded.
Permit denied 3-0
- 128. Permit 12371** The Authority will determine whether to grant the application of James Kulcsar for issuance of a driver's permit pursuant to NRS 706.462. Staff investigation concluded.
Closed session
Motion to refer back to Chief Park Approved 3-0
- 129. Public Comment**
none
- 130. Adjournment**
Meeting adjourned at 3:25 p.m.